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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of CMR NIKKIE INDIA

PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024,

. the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the

O cash flows statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date, and

- notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “ the Ind AS Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements read together with other notes thereon give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive Income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
6 Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAX") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements,

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report including Annexures to Annual Report
but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maiters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, other
Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue s a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board
of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial statement. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statement based on our audit.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,




and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemnance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.




2.

ii.

ifi.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of aforesaid Ind AS financial
statement;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law related to preparation aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 1st March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“dnnexure-B";

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’ s Report in accordance with

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
no remuneration has been paid by the Company to its directors during the year. Hence,
reporting required as per provisions of section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone financial statements — Refer Note 30 (B) to the Ind AS financial statements.

The Company has no long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024,
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iv. (a) The management has represented that that no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. Based on the reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to
our notice that such representation contains any material misstatement,

(b) The management has represented that no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entify(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable
audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our notice that such representation
contains any material misstatement.

v.  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no dividend
declared and/or paid during the year the Company.

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with, As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from April 01, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 040714N

CA. DEKlmrma’

Partner

M. No. 517638
UDIN:

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 16-05-2024




Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Member of CMR Nikkei India
Private Limited (‘the company’) on the financial statements for the year ended 31

March2024.

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph (1) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report for the year ended 31 March 2024,

i)

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which
all PPE are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, However, the
same has not been carried out during the year, But, management has committed to
carried out the same in next financial year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of company, the title deeds of all immovable properties are
held in the name of the company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder

(a) During the year, management has conducted physical verification of inventories
at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
physical verification.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of rupees five crore,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions which are secured on the basis of
security of current assets. The quarterly refurns or statements filed by the Company
in respect of current assets held by it and offered as security with such banks or
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company of
respective quarters and no material discrepancies have been observed on verification
of same with books of accounts.
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iii)

vi)

vi)

According to information, explanation and representation given by the management
and based upon audit procedure performed, the company has not made investments
in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature
of loans secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or
other parties during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (a) to (f) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to information, explanation and representation given by the management,
the company has not granted any loan, made any investment, given any guarantee
and securities provided which require compliances under section 185 & 186 of Act
2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company prescribed
by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are
of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We
have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete,

(@)  According to the records of the Company, the company is generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods & Service tax,
Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities.

()  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amount payable in respect of Goods & Service tax, Provident fund,
Employees’ state insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31! March, 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the company examined by us, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales- tax,
service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value
added tax on account of any dispute are as follows:-




Name of | Nature of Dues Amount Period to which | Forum where dispute
the (in ) amount relates | is pending
Statue
Income |Demand raised under | 3,37,30,000/- April, 2014 to CIT (Appeal),
Tax Act, | section 69 C of Income Tax March, 2015 Faridabad
1961 Act.
Finance [ Demands (including 1,43,000/- April, 2015 to CESTAT, Haryana
Act, 1994 | interest) raised on account March, 2016
of non-payment / short
payment of service tax
under reverse charge.
Goods & | Demand raised (including | 1,61,91,000/- April, 2019 to GST Appellate
Service interest) under Gujarat March’'2020 Authority, Gujarat
Tax Goods & Service Tax Act’
Act’2017 | 2017, regarding High
utilization Input Tax Credit
as compared to GSTR-3B
vs GSTR-2A.
viif)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions
relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961).
ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a Financial
Institution, Bank, government (both state and central), The company does not have
any outstanding debenture during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority or any other lender.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and based cn our
examination of the records, the Company has not taken any term loan during the
year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on short-
term basis have, premia facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, company has not
taken any funds during the year, from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its associates.




Xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

Xv)

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, company does not
have any securities held in subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(2) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and based upon the audit
procedures performed during the year, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the
Company by its officers/employees have been noticed or reported during audit.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to information and explanations given to us by the management, there
are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc. as required by the
accounting standards and Companies Act, 2013,

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for
the period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the company, company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with directors. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.




xvi)

xvii}

xviii)

Xix)

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor of the Company during the
year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(2) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR}) on
other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII
to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of
Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

(b} In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of the previous financial year, to a
Special account within a period of 30 days from the end of the said financial year in
compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the Act.

For Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 040714N

W

CA. Devesh Sharma

Partner

M. No. 517638

UDIN:

Place: Faridabad
Dated:16-05-2024



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial
Statement of CMR Nikkei India Private Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CMR Nikkei India
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal contrel over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAT’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued
by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 040714N

CA. m

Partner

M. No. 517638 _
UDIN: 2.4 51#6 26 B¢ TTA 6298

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 16-05-2024




CMR Nikkel India Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
{Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Asat As at
Particufars Notes  yrarch 31, 2024 March 31,2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 3 9,259.85 9,754.69
Capital Work In Progress 3 - 167.93
Right-Of-Use Assets 3 - -
Intanpible Assets 4 0.63 0.87
Financial Assets

l. Loans 5 4.54 -

ii. Other Financial Assets & 91.24 83.30
Non-Current Tax Assets-{Net} 436.68 166.54
Other Non-Current Assets 8 0.37 66.99

9,793.31 10,240.32
Current Assets
Inventories 9 9,626.67 13,422.52
{Financial Assets

i. Loans 5 9.86 12.63

il. Trade Receivables 10 13,637.71 8,310.63

il, Cash And Cash Equivalents 11{i) 6.40 122.80

iv. Bank Balances Other Than (it} Above 11 (i) 10241 85.94

v. Other Financial Assets 6 13.94 .67
Current Tax Asset-(Net) - 287.76
Other Current Assets 8 8,084.17 5,432.63

31,481.16 28,684.58
Assets Held For sale 192 -
Total Assets 41,276.39 38,524.90
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share Capital 12 8,297.30 8,297.30
Other Equity

i, Securities Premium 114.60 114.60

il. Retained Earnings 19,636.25 18,286.27
Total Equity 28,048.15 26,698.17
LIABILITIES
Non- current liabilities
Finzncial Liabllities

i. Borrowings 13 - -

ii. Lease Liabilities - -
Deferred tax liability (net) 7 673.23 1,009.19
Long Term Provisions 14 56.74 48.46
Other non- current liabllities 15 - -

729.97 1,057.65
Current Liabilities
{Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 13 3,205.37 959.11
ii. Trade Payables 16
-Due to Micro Small and Small Enterprises 134.70 401.61
-Dues to Others® 8,372.18 9,187.45
iil. Lease Liabilities - -
Iv. Cther Financial Liabilities 17 232,25 327.11
Current Tax Liabilities{Net} 18 208.33 -
Short Term Provisions 14 4447 43.14
Other Current Liabilities 15 299.97 250.66
12,498.27 11,169.08
Total Liabilitles 13,228.24 12,226.73
Total equity and liabilities 41,276.39 38,924.90

The accompanying notes form an Integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date

For M/s Goel Sharma & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI'S FRN :- 040714N

CA, Davesh Sharma
Partner

Membership No. : 517638
UDIN:

Place: Faridabad

Date: ‘(’:‘th 2224

For and on behzal!f of the Board of Directors
of CVIR Nikkel India Private Limited

Ridhima Bagla
(Director)
DIN 03045297




CMR Nikkei india Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

REVENUE
Revenue from operations 18 1,87,280.06 1,91,627.18
Otherincome 20 911.86 942.20
Total income 1,88,191.92 1,92,565.38
EXPENSES
Cost of raw material and components consumed 21 1,69,978.34 1,63,129.33
Purchase of tradad goods 22 4,364.54 11,910.35
{Increase)/ Decrease in inventories of finished goods 23 342.63 4,347.05
Employee benefits expense 24 1,904.90 1,794.47
Finance costs 25 896.29 562.51
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 784.42 760.97
Other expenses 27 7,693.74 8,060.18
Total expenses 1,86,364.86 1,90,564.86
Profit before tax 1,827.06 2,004.52
Tax expense: 7
Current tax 837.27 480.87
Tax Earller Year {21.65) {18.72)
Deferred tax {Credit)/charge relating to earlier year 24.18 5.85
Deferred tax (Credit)/charge (360.79) 30.22
Profit for the period/year 1,348.05 1,506.30
Other Comprehensive Income 28
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gainf(losses) on defined benefit plans 2.58 {6.22)
Income tax credit/ (loss} on DBP {0.65) 1.556
Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss) 1.93 (4.66)
Total Comprehensive Income/{Loss) for the year 1,349.98 1,501.64
Earnings per share: {nominal value per share of Rs 10 29
each)
1) Basic 1.62 1.82
2) Diluted 1.62 1.82

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For M/s Goel Sharma & Assoclates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants of CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
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CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,827.06 2,004.52
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 784.42 760.97
Profit on lease liability INDAS - -
Re-measurement (losses) on defined benefit plans 2.58 (6.22)
Interest Income (8.55) {9.09)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.62 2.49
Forward premium on realised and unrealised commaodity contracts
Interest expenses 8R82.74 550.76
1,661.81 1,298.92
Operating Profit before adjustments 3,488.87 3,303.41
Adjustments:
{Increasa)/ Decrease in Inventories 3,795.86 2,416.61
{Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables {4,327.08) 7,805.55
{Increase)/ Decrease in Other financial assets (8.66) 43.19
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other assets (2,650.92} 4,679.66
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables (1,082.17) (342.46)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities (8.08) {549.29)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other liabilities 3399 {799.86)
Increase/ {Decrease) in Provisions 9.61 23.87
Change in the adjustments {4,237.45) 13,277.26
Cash generated from operations {748.58) 16,580.70
Less : Taxes paid (588.68) (971.28)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) {1,337.26) 15,609.42
Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {net} (205.47) (817.52)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 60.73 107.96
Interast received 3.22 4.77
Investment in fixed deposits (16.47) {83.37)
Net cash generated/(used) in investing activitles: (B) {157.99) (788.17)
Net cash flow from financing activities:
Repayment from long term borrowings (net) - {15.50}
Proceeds/(Repayment) from short term borrowings (net) 2,245.26 {14,162.51)
Interest paid (867.41) {569.83)
Net cash generated/{used) from financing activities: { C} 1,378.85 {14,747.84)
Net change In Cash & cash equivalents {A+B+C) {116.40) 7341
Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of year {refer Note 11(i)) 122.80 49,39
Cash & cash equivalents as at end of the year {refer Note 11(i)) 6.640 122.80
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following
Cash on hand (Note 11} 1.47 1.45
On current accounts (Note 11) 2.83 4.26
On cash credit accounts -Debit balance (Note 11} 2.10 117.09
Balance as per statement of cash flows 6.40 122.80

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Chartered Accountants
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CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31,2024

{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Equity Share capital Other equity- Reserves and Surplus
N OCI Effective .
Particulars No. of shares Amount Retained Securities portion of ¢ash flow Total Total equity
earnings premium
hedge reserve
As at March 31,2022 8,29,72,875 8,297.30 16,784,63 114,60 - 16,899.23 25,196,53
Add: Profit for the year - - 1,506.30 - - 1,506.30 1,506.30
Add: Other camprehensive income - - {4.66) - - (4.66) {4.66)
Add: Received during the year - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 8,29,72,975 8,297.30 18,286.27 114.60 - 18,400.87 26,698.17
Add: Profit for the year - - 1,348.05 - - 1,348.05 1,348.05
Add: Other comprehensive income - . 1.83 - 1.93 1.93
Add: Received during the year - - - - - - -
. As at March 31, 2024 8,29,72,975 8,297.30 19,636.25 114.60 = 19,750.85 28,048.15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For M/s Goel Sharma & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI'S FRN :- 040714N

CA. Devesh Sharma
Partner
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CMR NIKKEI INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

1. Corporate information

CMR NIKKEI INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (the Company) is a Private Limited Company
domiciled in India, incorporated w.e.f. 4th July 2012 under the provisions of Companies Act,
1956. The company is manufacturer of Aluminium based Die Cast Alloys and Zinc Alloys.

These Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 16, 2024.

1.1, Basis of preparation

These Standalone Financial Statements (‘financial statements’) have been prepared in
accordance Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013 (IND AS compliant Schedule III), to the extent applicable.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
basis, except for the certain financial assets and financial liabilities which have been measured
at fair value as per the requirements of the Ind AS.

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of certain significant accounting
estimates and judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in applying the
Company’s accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the financial
statements, or areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, are disclosed in note
2.23.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reporied in lacs of Indian Rupees
(‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.”), except per share data and unless stated otherwise and rounded off to nearest
lacs.

2. Summary of material accounting policies

The accounting policies, as set out below, have been consistently applied, by the Company, to
all the years presented in the financial statements.

2.1. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Ministry of Corporate Affaris (“MCA”) has carried out amendments to the following
accounting standards. The effect on adoption of following mentioned amendments had no
impact on the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The Company has not early adopted any
standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

(i) Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

(ii) Ind AS 103: Business Combinations

(iii) Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28: Definition of Recoverable Amount

(iv) Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104, Ind AS 116 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform




MCA issued notification dated March 24, 2021 to amend Schedule III to the Cgmpanies Act,
2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be made by a Company in its f_'manmal statements.
These amendments are effective for financial years starting on or after April 01, 2021.

2.2 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iif) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is classified as current when:

i) Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period :

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

2.3 Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s
functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance

sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

o Intheabsence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the following fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued
operation.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and significant liabilities, if any.




At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

2.5 Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitied in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods before
transferring them to the customer.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances,
trade discounts and rebates. The Company collects Goods & Service Tax (GST) on behalf of the
government and therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, these
are excluded from the revenue.

Variable consideration includes trade discounts, volume rebates and incentives, etc. The
Company estimates the variable consideration with respect to above based on an analysis of
accumulated historical experience. The Company adjusts estimate of revenue at the earlier of
when the most likely amount of consideration expected to receive changes or when the
consideration becomes fixed.

Sale of services

Revenue from job work in process is recognised by reference to the stage of completion. Stage
of completion is measured by reference to job work in process at the year end and is recognized
at measured value of conversion charges as increase\ decrease in job work in process. The
Company collects service tax/ Goods and Services Tax on job work on behalf of the government
and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from
revenue.




Interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Export incentive

Export incentive under the EPCG scheme are accounted in the year of export of goods
considering certainty in the collection of export proceeds.

2.6 Government grant
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is
regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at
fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying
value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

2.7 Income Taxes
The income tax expense comprise of current and deferred income tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in
India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the Income tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretations and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.




Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
(a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(b} In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and

associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, if any. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized, except:

(a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

(b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss
(either in *OCI’ or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally

enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.
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2.8 Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

An item of PPE is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

Capital work in progress and PPE are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE
comprises its purchase price (including non-refundable duties and taxes and excluding any trade
discounts and rebates), and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of PPE
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When significant
parts are required to be replaced at regular intervals, the Company recognises such parts as
separate component of assets and depreciates separately based on their specific useful life. When
an item of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised from the balance sheet and
cost of the new item of PPE is recognised.

The expenditures those are incurred after the item of PPE is available for use, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such costs are
incurred. However, in situations where such expenditure can be measured reliably, and is
probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company, it is included
in the asset’s carrying value or as a separate asset, as appropriate,

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight line basis using the rates as specified in Part C of
Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013.

Individual items of property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs. 10,000/~ is charged to the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which it is purchased or acquired.

The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining
components are depreciated over the life of principal asset.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted
appropriately, at each reporting date. The effect of any change in the estimated useful lives,
residual values and / or depreciation method are accounted for prospectively, and accordingly
the depreciation is calculated over the PPE’s remaining revised useful life. The cost and the
accumulated depreciation for PPE sold, scrapped, retired or otherwise disposed off are de-
recognised from the balance sheet and the resulting gains / (losses) are included in the statement
of profit and loss within other expenses / other income.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its
property, plant and equipment recognised at April 01, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP
and use that carrying value except accounting for Government grant as the deemed cost of the
property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress.

The cost of capital work-in-progress is presented separately in the balance sheet.

2.9 Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and




accumulated impairment losses. Software is capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the
respective license for use and is amortised over the period of license not exceeding six years from
the date when the asset is available for use.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on
straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are
available for use. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at each balance sheet date. If expected useful life is
significant different from previous assessment, the change in useful life is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its
intangible assets recognised at April 01, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.

2.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to
the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate

vaiuation model is used.
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after
the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady
or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as a
component of depreciation and amortisation expense.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited to the extent the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is carried at the
revalued amount, in which case the reverse is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.12 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

1) Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies 3.11 on
Impairment of non-financial assets.
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ii) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments are fixed

payments.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option
to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company’s lease liabilities are disclosed separately in the balance sheet.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases except
in case of lease contracts with related parties since there exist economic incentive for the
company to continue using the leased premises for a period longer than the 11 months and
considering the contract is with the related parties, it does not foresee non-renewal of the lease
term for future periods, thus basis the substance and economics of the arrangements, management
believes that under Ind AS 116, the lease terms in the arrangements with related parties have
been determined considering the period for which management has an economic incentive to use
the leased asset (i.e. reasonable certain to use the asset for the said period of economic incentive).
Such assessment of incremental period is based on management assessment of various factors
including the remaining useful life of the asset as on the date of transition. The management has
assessed period of arrangements with related parties as 8 to 9 years as at April 01, 2019. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

2.13 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Raw materials, traded goods and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected
to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials and stores and spares is determined on First in
first Out (FIFO) basis except for Goods in Transit which is valued at specifically identified
purchase cost.




Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials
and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Inventories qualifying as hedged items in a fair value hedge relationship are adjusted for the
hedging gain or loss on hedged item.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.14 Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
aresult of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed.

2.15 Contingent Liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements only when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

2.16 Employee benefits

The Company’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, contribution to
plans, defined benefit plans and compensated absences. The employee benefits are recognised in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by the Company employees.

i) Defined contribution plans — Provident fund

Provident fund

Q b}

S| FRNYAdy iy | B
* \ FARIDABAD




A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The
Company makes specified monthly contributions towards provident fund which are defined
contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
funds. The Company recognises contribution payable to the fund scheme in the statement of
profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid,
the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

ii) Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

Gratuity

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation
in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; this benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value
of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Company’s obligation under this plan is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling (if applicable) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit
or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

All other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss
as employee benefit expenses. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined
benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Curtailment gains and
losses are accounted for as past service costs.

iii) Other employee benefits

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and
utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation during termination of
employment.

Compensated absence, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date. The Company treats compensated absences expected to be carried forward
beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-
term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement
of profit and loss.

The Company presents the leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent
it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting
date.




2.17 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’
on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement
i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost (debt instrument)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

if)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instrument)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if
it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstandin 8.
Further in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business
model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments the subsequent changes in
fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

There are no financial instruments in the Company measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income,

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss




A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method or at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the criteria under Ind AS 109 are satisfied.
All other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

a) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the iiability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

b} Borrowings

On initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-
recognition under IND AS 109. A financial liability {or a part of the financial liability) is
derecognized from the Company’s balance sheet when the cbligation specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods
and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date.
The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available




quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general
approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

For all other financial instruments the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of those instruments.

DOffsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
standalone balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on
financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade receivables and
other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest
rate {or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the
expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month
expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the
lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting
date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

For trade receivables, the Company follows "simplified approach for recognition of impairment
loss. The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit
risk.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.




2,18 Derivatives
The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge

risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to statement of profit and loss.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

2.2} Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the parent
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by
the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

2.21 Segment
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker. The Chief Operating decision maker reviews business

performance at an overall Company level as one segment "Aluminium ingots and zinc based
Alloys.”.

2.22 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
holder of the Company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares
are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in
dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.23 Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

‘The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts, forward
commodity contracts and currency future contracts to hedge risks associated with foreign




currency fluctuations and commodity price risks. The Company also holds commodity future
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in price of commodity.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

This category has derivative assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic
perspective, they may not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109. Any derivative that
is either not designated a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective, is recognized on balance
sheet and measured initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are re-
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Hedge Accounting

The Company designates forward commodity contracts under fair value hedges to hedge the
exposure to changes in prices of the commodities for its unrecognized firm commitment and
existing inventory.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The effectiveness of hedge
instruments is assessed and measured at inception and on an ongoing basis.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature
of the risk being hedged, and how the Company will assess whether the hedging relationship
meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge
ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined).

Hedges that meet the hedge effectiveness criteria, the change in the fair value of hedging
instrument and the hedge item is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When an
unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative
change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as
an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

2.24 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.

Judgements




In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
standalone financial statements:

a) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against
the Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature,
contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to
occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently
involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of
future events.

b) Revenue recognition and presentation

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria, i.e. whether it has
exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or the rendering
of services, in order to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Company has
concluded that they operating on a principal to principal basis in all its revenue arrangements.




Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control
of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments
that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to
goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

b) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific
countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation
rates for the respective countries.

¢) Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables generally do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as
reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade
receivables are written off when management deems them not to be collectible,

d) Property, plant and equipment
The carrying value of property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in note 3.




e) Intangible assets
The carrying value of intangible assets has been disclosed in note 4.

f) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility.

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

g) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available.

h) Leases - Estimating the period of lease contracts with related parties

In case of lease contracts with related parties, there exist economic incentive for the Company to
continue using the leased premises for a period longer than the 11 months. The period of expected
lease in these cases is a matter of estimation by the management. The estimate of lease period
impacts the recognition of ROU asset, lease liability and its impact of statement of profit and
loss. The lease terms in the arrangements with related parties have been determined considering
the period for which management has an economic incentive to use the leased asset (i.e.
reasonably certain to use the asset for the said period of economic incentive). Such assessment
of incremental period is based on management assessment of various factors including the
remaining useful life of the asset as on the date of transition. The management has assessed period
of arrangements with related parties as 8 to 9 years as at April 01, 2019.

i) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options —
Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the




commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

j) Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next year and the
recoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, right of use assets, investments, inventory and trade receivables. Based on
current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying
amount of these assets.

The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing
of the potential future impact of the COVID-19 which may be different from that estimated as at
the date of approval of these standalone Ind AS statements.

The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes arising of future economic
conditions and impact on its business.




CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

O

Q
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Cost

As at March 31, 2022 1,625.26 3,725.18 6,893.54 39.61 80.99 45,00 194,49 12,604.08 296.69 .
Additlons - . 1,033.56 . 23.74 7.48 19.86 1,084.64 (128.76) .
Disposals / adjustments - - {147.02) - - (4.93) (25.82) 172.77) - -
Adjustments - - . . . . . - . -
As ot March 31, 2023 1,625.26 3,725.19 7,780.08 39.61 104.73 47.55 188.53 13,510.95 167.93 -
Additions - 19.08 31175 0.52 2.83 16.49 . 350.68 - -
Dispasals - - {116.25) (5.13) {14.17) {135.54) {167.93) -
As at March 31, 2024 1,625.26 3,744.28 7,975.58 40.13 107.56 58.92 174.37 13,726.10 0.00 -
Depreciation

Asat March 31, 2022 - 555.50 2,320.21 18.05 42.67 30.63 95.79 3,062.84 - -
Charge for the year - 124.89 590.74 3.78 15.71 6.11 19.50 760.73 - -
Disposals / adjustments - - (45.48) - - {4.27) (17.56) {67.31) - -
Adjustments - - . - - . . - - -
As at March 31,2023 - 680.29 2,865.47 21.83 58.38 32.47 97.73 3,756.26 . -
Charge for the year - 12271 614.74 3.76 17.09 9.34 16.53 784.17 -
Disposals - - [56.67) . - {4.34) {13.18) {74.19) -
As at March 31, 2024 - 803.10 3,423.54 25.589 75.47 37.47 101.08 4,466.24 - -
Netblock

As at March 31, 2023 1,625.26 3,044.80 4,914.60 17.78 46.35 15,08 90.80 9,754.69 167.93 -
As at March 31, 2024 1,625.26 2,941.18 4,552.04 14.54 32.10 21.44 73.29 9,259.85 0.00 -

# The numbers reported are net {additions - deletions).
1) Term Loan from 5B1 is secured by second charge on pari-passu basis over the entire fixed assets except vehicles specifically hypotheeated against vehicle loans of the company, present & future, including equitable mortgage of factory

{and & building at Plot No. 65, Sector 15, Bawal Industrial Area, Bawal, Haryana [refer note 13).

2) Term loan from Sinhan Bank was secured by hypothecation of 2lant & Machinery installed in the factory building at Survay Na, 676 & 677 village Vanod Taluka Dasada, District Surender Nagar, Gujarat - 382750 and by way of
Simple/Registered mortgage of Land and building situated at Survey No. 676 & 677 village Vanod Taluka Dasada, District Surender nagar Gujarat - 382750. The said laan has heen repaid during the current year (Refer note 13).

3) Cash credit from HOFC bank and working capital loan from SBI is secured by way of extension of charge over the fixed assets except vehicles specifically hypothecated against vehicle loans of Bawal plant, including equitable mortgage of
factory land & building at Plot No. 65, Sector 15, Bawal Industrial Area, Bawal, Haryana.
* The above additions are in respect to the new project setup at Gujarat of the company.




CMR Nikket India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount In Rupces Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4, Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer Software
Graoss block
As at March 31,2023 57.73
Additions -
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2024 57.73
Amortisation
As at March 31,2023 56.86
Charge for the year 0.24
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2024 57.10
Net block
As at March 31, 2023 0.87
As atiMarch 31, 2024 0.63

Capital Work in Propress ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2024 Amount (Rs in Lacs)
Amount of CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3
Years
Project in progress - - -
Prajects temporarily suspended - - -
Total - - -
As at March 31, 2023 Amount (Rs in Lacs)
Amount of CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mare than 3
Years
Project in progress 167.93 - 167.93
Prajects temporarily suspended - - -
Total 167.93 - 167.93




CMR Nikkel India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10, Trade receivables

Trade recelvables
-Related Parties {Refer note 31)
-Others

Total

Outstanding for a perlod exceeding slx months
from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good

-Related Parties (Refer note 31)

-Others

Dther reccivables

Unsecured, considered good
-Related Parties (Refer note 31)
-Others

Tatal Trade recelvables

Notes:-

1. For terms and conditions relating to refated party receivables, refer Note 31

2. Trade reccivables are g ¥

Trade Recelvable agelng schedule:

est bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days
3. Entire trade les of the C have been hypoth d/ mortgaged to secure borrowings of the Company {refer note 13)

Asat Asat
March 31,2024  March3i, 2023
576.05 1,952.50
13,061.66 7,358.13
13,637.71 2.310.63

_—t==t——,

4.24 11.94

4.24 1194
576.05 1,952.50
13,057.42 7,346.19
33,633.47 5,298.69

_t=0=ta—

13,637.71

9,310.63

—_——t

As at March 31, 2024
particatars Current but no — ‘:;gnth;- < for the g perfods from due date of payment
due 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Yeary Total
Months Year

L d Trade Receivahles - goad 12,824.35 £05.12 3.10 1.13 . 13.637.71
Undisputed Trade Reccivables ~ which have
|significant Increase in credit risk ) .

Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - . .

DI d Trade bles - idered good - - - -

Disputed Trade reccivables — which have significant

increase In credit risk ) ’ }

Disputed Trade ivables — credit - . - . -

Total 12,824.35 808.12 3.10 1.13 - 13,6372.71
As at March 31, 2023

Q for the g p from due date of payment
Particulars Curre:‘ But not Lessthan & | 6 Months-1
ue Months Yaar 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Totat

Und! d Trade i - i i good 7.258.74 1,999.95 11.94 - - 9,310.63
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - . - - -

Und d Trade ivable - credit i ircd - - . - .

Disputed Trade rec - idered pood - - - - -

Disputed Trade recelvablos — which have significant - - - - -

Disputed Trade recoivables - credit impalred - . - . N

Total 7,298.74 1,999.95 11.94 - - 9,310.63
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5. Loans (at amortised cost)

Non-current Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023  March 31,2028  March 31, 2023
Loans to employzes
Unsecured, considered good 4.54 - .86 12.63
4.54 - 9.86 12,63
6. Other Financial assets
Non-current Current
Asat As ot As at Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023  March 31,2028  March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
{1} Dervative instruments at fair value
Mark to market gain on dity futures - tvable from holding company - - .
Mark to market galn on currency futures at fair . R )
value through profit or loss
(il) Other Financla! assets (at amortised cost}
Sccurity depesits 68.22 61.33 1.00 1.00
Interest accruied on fixed deposits and others 4.31 3.26 1294 B.67
Depesits with remaining maturity of more than 12 18.70 1871 . ;
months*{Notell)
Total 91,29 83.30 13.94 9.67
*Deposits with remalning maturity of more than 12 moanths are held as margin money against the Bank Guarantee.
8. Other Current/Non Current assets
Non-curreat Current
Asat As at Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Bal with v/ Authoritles B - 428.65 3,886.66
Capital advances 0.14 66.13 - -
Contract Assets - Unbilled Revenue . . 476.99 350.48
Advance to employees against expenses . 2.64 242
Advance to suppliers
-Related Partles (Refer note 31) - . 6,118.54 -
-COthers - - 939.15 745.62
Export Incentive recoverable - - 66.84 431,04
Prepald expenses 0.23 0.86 17.11 14.20
Bank charges recoverable - - 0.37 221
Quality cllam Recelvable 33.88 -
Total 0.37 665.93 8,084.17 5,432.63
9. Inventories
Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Raw materials {Including Rs. 2808.94 Lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs. 4,097.1675 lakhs) In transit}*,** & 8,373.52 11,822.30
Finished goods 1,025.04 1,367.67
Stores and spares 228.11 232,55
Total 9,626.67 13,422.52

“la transit Includes Rs.Nil (Mar 31, 2023: 143.82 Lakhs} from holding company, CMR Green Technolegies Ltd
*In transit includes Rs. Nl {Mar 31, 2023: Rs. 103.41) from fellow subsidiary, CMR Aluminium Pvt Ltd

*in transit Includes Rs. Nil {Mar 31, 2023: NIt} from fellow subsidiary, CMR Chiho Industries India Private Limited
** Include stock of Rs Nil [March 2023:Rs 1346.98 Lacs) lying in extended warehouse of Job worker

# Falr value hedges are malnly used to hedge the exposure to change in fair value of commodity price risks. The falr value adjustment remalns part of the carrying value of

inventory and taken to profit and loss when the Inventory Is cither sold or consumed.
The Company has extended fair value hedge accounting on its inventary which forms part of raw material dusing the year.
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11. {i} Cash and cash equlvalents

Asat Asat
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Cash on hand 1.47 145
Balances with banks:

«Current account 2.83 4.26
- Cash eredit account 2.10 117.09
Total 6.40 122.80

{li) Other bank balance

Oetails of other bank balances s as follows:

Asat Asat
March 31,2028 March 31, 2023

Deposits with remaintng maturity of less than 12

102.41 85.94
months**
Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 18.71 1871
months*

121.12 104.65

: Disclosed n 11

Less under Other assels (refer 1sTs e
note &)

102,41 85.94

=Ll

*Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 manths are held as margin money against the Bank Guarantee.

**Deposits with remaining maturity of less than 12 months Rs 4.41 Lacs (March 31,2023: Rs 7.24 Lacs) are held as margin money against the Letter of credit and Bank Guarantees
and Deposlts with remalning maturity of less than 12 months of Rs 98.00 Lacs {March 31,2023: Rs 78.70 lacs) pertains to on CSR d.

Note:-

Entire Cash and Cash equivalents and deposits with banks of the Company have been hypothecated/mortgaged to secure borrowlngs of the Company {refer note 13)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equival comprise of the followlng;
Asat Asat

March 31,2028  March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 147 145
Balances with banks:
- Current account 2.83 4.26
- Cash credit account 2.10 117.09
Total 6.40 122,80
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Notes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7. Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023 are:

Statement of profit and loss:

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2623
Tox Expense:
Current income tax charge 837.27 480.87
Adjustments in respect of current Income tax of previous period (21.65) (18.72)
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of tempaorary differences relating to 2418 5.85
earlier periods
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences relating to (360.79) 30.22
current period
Incore tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss 479.61 A88.22
QCl section
Deferred tax related to Items recognised in OCI during the period:
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax on net gains/{loss) on measurement of defined benefit plans {0.65} 1.56
Deferred tax on net gains/{loss) in effectiva portion of cash flow hedge . B
reserve
Income tax charged to OCt {0.65) 1.56
Reconclliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023.
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 33, 2023
Accounting profit befare tax from continuing operations 1,827.06 2,004.52
Accounting profit before income tax 1,827.65 2,004.52
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168% 459.83 504.50
AdJustments in respect of current income tax of previous periods {21.65) {18.72)
Deferred tax expense charged in current year due to change in rate - -
Deferred tax expense in relation to earlier years 24.18 5.85
Effect of expenditure not allowable under Income Tax Act, 1961 20.49 28.63
Others (12.84) {22.03)
At the effective incame tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2023: 25.168%) 479.01 498.22
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 479.01 498,22
Deferred tax: Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss
Asat As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax relates to the fallowing:
Defarred tax {Liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment {637.64) (611.96} {25.68) {57.64)
43 b Liability (59.04) {436.04) 377.01 7.07
Deferred tax Assets - -
Provisien for employee benefits and preliminary expenses 25.62 26.71 {1.09) 9.686
On unrealised portion of forward premium on derivative contracts § (2.17) 12.09 {14.26) 6.40
Effect of expenditure debited to statement of Profit and Loss in the
current/ earlier years but allowable for tax purpose in the following years - - -
Total deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) {Net) (673.23) {1,009.20} 335.97 {34.51)
# Deferred tax asset on firm commitment, inventory and derivative asset/liability has been disclosed on net basis.
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:
Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax assets 23.45 38.80
Deferred tax liability {696.68) {1,048.01)
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) {Net) (673.23) {1,009.21)
Reconciliation of deferred tax lfabilities (net):
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance of {1,009.21} {974.69}
Tax income/ (expense) during the pariod recognised in profit or loss 336.62 {36.07)
Taxincome/ (expense) during the period recognised in OCI {0.65) 1.56
Closing balance of deferred tax llabllities/ (asset) {Net) {673.23) (2,009.21}

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred

tax assets and deferred tax labilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otharwise stated)

12. Share Capital

Authorised shares
85,000,000 (March 31, 2023: 85,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each

Total Authorlsed Share Capital

tssued shares, subscribed and fully paid -up shares
82,972,975 (March 31, 2023: 82,972,975) equlty shares of Rs. 10 each

(a) Reconciliation of no. of shares

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Atthe end of the year

(b} Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

8,500.00 8500.00
8,500.00 8,500.00
8,297.30 8,297.30
8,297.30 8,297.30

8.29,72,975 8,29,72,975

8,29,72,975 8,29,72,975

The Company has anly one class of equity shares having par vaiue of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recalve any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Shareholders

(¢ } Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares

% holding In the

No. of shares

% holding in the

equity shares equity shares
CMR Green Technoloples Limited 6,14,00,000 74.00% 6,14,00,000 74.00%
Nikkel MC Aluminium Co. Ltd 2,15,72,975 26.00% 2,15,72,975 26.00%
Total 8,29,72,975 100% 8,29,72,975 100%

{d) The Company has not issued any shares pursuant to any contract without payment being recelved In cash or as fully paid up by way of banus shares. The Campany

has not bought back any shares.

{e) Shares held by holding company

Name of the shareholder

As at March 31, 2624

As at March 31, 2623

No. of shares

% holding in the
equity sharas

No. of shares

% holding In the
equity shares

CMR Green Technologies Limited 6,14,00,000 74.00% 6,14,00,000 74.00%
(g) Detalls of shares held by Promoters
As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares
Promater Name at the Change during the No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during the
beginning of year end of the year yaar
the year
CMR Green Technologles Limited 6,14,00,000 - 6,14,00,000.0 74% -
Nikkel MC Alutminium Ce. Ltd 2,15,72,975 2,15,72,975.0 26% -
As at March 31, 2023
No. ofshares
Promoter Name ) atthe Change duringthe  No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during the
eginning of year end of the year year
the year
CMR Green Technologles Limited 6,14,00,000 6,14,00,000.0 74% B
Nikkei MC Alumirium Co. Ltd 2,15,72,975 2,15,72,975.0 26% -
12(b). Other equity :
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Retalned earnings:
Opening batance 18,286.27 16,784.63
Profit/(Lass) for the year 1,348.05 1,506.30
Other comprehensive income for the year 1.93 (4.66)
Closing balance 19,636.25 18,286.27

Retained earnings refer to net earnings not paid out as dividends, but retained by the Company to be reinvested in its core business, This amount s avallable for distribution

of dividends to its equity shareholders.

Securities premium:
Opening balance
Changes during the year
Closing balance

Total

1146 114.6
114.60 114.50
19,750.85 18,400.88

Securities premium is used te record the premium on (ssue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purpases such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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13, Borrowings

Detalls of borrowings are as follows:

Non-curvent Current
As at Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 Moarch 31, 2023

From Banks
Secured

Working capital loan - - 3,202.30 958.96
Cash credit - - 3.07 0.15
Unsecured

Bills discounted (HDFC) - - - -
Bills discounted (CTBC) - - - -
Total 0.00 {0.00) 3,205.37 §59.11

The above amount includes

Secured borrowing - - 3,205.37 959,11
Unsecured borrowing - - - -
Current maturity of Long term borrowing - - - -
Net amount - - 3,205.37 959,11

Current Borrowings
The security and rate of Interest of the above loans are as given below:

Loan Loan Amount in Rs. Lakhs Rate of Interest Repayment terms Security
during the year

Cash credit {secured)

March 31, 2024 - Nil

HDFC Bank March 31, 2025 - Rs 0.15 Lacs 8.85%-9.20% |Repayable on demand Refer Note 1 below
March 31, 2024 - Rs 3.07 Lacs
Axis Bank March 31, 2023 - Nil 8.50%-9.00% |Repavable on demand Refer Note 1 below

Working capital demand loans-indian Rupees {secured)

March 31, 2024 - Nil For a perlod not exceeding 3

Federal Bank March 31, 2023 - Rs 1.72 Lacs 7.75% :;ut:ths from drawdown Refer Note 1 below
March 31, 2024 - Rs 700.00 For a period not exceeding 3

Axis Bank Lacs 7.80%-9.35% |months from drawdown Refer Note 1 below
March 31, 2023 - Nil date
March 31, 2024 - Rs 2.30 Lacs For a period not exceeding 3

HDFC Bank March 31, 2023 - Rs 957.24 7.57%-9.20% |months from drawdown Refer Note 1 below
Lacs date
March 31, 2024 - Rs 2500.00 For a period not exceeding 3

CTBC Bank tacs 7.55% months from drawdown Refer Note 2 below
March 31, 2023 . Nil date

Nature of Security

1) State Bank Of India / HDFC Bank / Federa) Bank / Axis Bank : -

a) Primary: Working Capital facilities is secured by first charge on the entire current assets on pari -passu basis of the company with other working capital lenders both
present & future, incluting hypothecation of all types of stocks of raw material, stores, spares, stock-In-process, finished goods, etc. lying in factory, godowns, elsewhere
{including goods in transit} and company's receivables/ Book debt. Hypothecation of Stock & Receivables

b) Collaterals: First Charge on pari passu basis over the fixed assets of the company {present and future) including Equitable Mortgage of factory Land & Building at Plot
No. 65, Sector-15, Bawal-123501, Haryana.

Note: Indusind Bank facilities are no longer part of the multiple banking arrangement and were taken over by HDEC Bank . The securities extended to Indusind Bank
mentioned in clauses (a) & (b} above has been released vide charge satisfaction certifcate bearing reference number AA3551369 dated 29,07.2023.

2} CTBC Bank:-

g} The facllities sanctioned by CTBC Bank are unsecured. CTBC bank has sanctioned bill discounting facilities as main limit amounting to 2500 lacs. The company has
utilised 2500 lacs WCDL. facilities which is the sub limit to main limit.
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14. Provisicns

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave encashment
Provision for gratuity

15. Other current/non current liabilities

Statutory dues

Interest on income tax

Advance from Customers

Liability towards Corporate Social Responsibility

Non-current

Current

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

- - 34.36 32.32
56.74 438.46 10.10 10.82
56.74 48.46 44.47 43.14
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at

March 31,2024 WMarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- - 73.87 60.02

- - 15.32 -
- - 6.80 11.55
- - 203.98 179.09
- - 299.97 250.66
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16. Trade payables (at amortised cost)

1 Details of trade payables is as follows:

Current
As at As at
fviarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade payables
Dues to micro and small enterprises 134.70 401,61
Dues to others
-Related Parties (Refer Note 31} 5,330.29 6,031.19
-Others 3,041.89 3,156.26
Total 8,506.88 9,589.06
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
a) Trade payables (other than related parties) are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 days terms
b) For terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 31
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mo‘r{:::rsan 3 Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 134.70 - - - 134.70
Total ofjtstanding dues of creditors other than micro entarprises and small 8,314.55 34.56 21.62 145 8,372.18
enterprises
Disputed dues of micro entergrises and small enterprises - - - -
Disputed dues of craditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - -
©> Total 8,449.25 34,56 21.62 1.45 8,506.88
As at March 31, 2023
. More than 3
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 401.61 - - . 401.61
Total oytstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 9,061.34 74.06 14.26 37.81 9.187.45
enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises . - -
Total 9,462.95 74.04 14,26 37.81 9,589.06
17, Other financial liabilities
1 a) Details of other financial liabilities carried is as follows:
Current
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Derivative instruments at falr value through profit or loss:
Mark to market loss on commodity futures- Payable to holding company 81.66 96.11
{ii) Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost)
Security deposits 192 2,48
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.04 1.04
Employee related payables 53.00 46.07
Creditors for capital expenditure 94.63 181.41
232.25 327.11
» b) Breakup of financial liabilitles at amortised cost:
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings (Refer to note 13) 3,205.38 959.11
Trade payables {Refer to note 16) 8,506.88 8,589.06
Lease Liabilities . {0.00)
Other financia! liabilities 232.25 327.11
11,944.51 10,875.28
18. Current tox liabilities {net)
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for taxation {net) 209.33 -

209.33
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19. Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations
Sale of Products
Manufactured goods
Traded goods

Other operating revenue:
Sale of services*

Sale of Scrap and others**
Export Incentive
Total revenue from operations

{a) Timing of revenue recognition
Products transferred at a point in time
Services rendered at a point in time
Total

(b} Reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised with contract price

Revenue as per contracted price

Performance Obligation

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2029 March 31, 2023

1,34,886.22 1,31,111.00
5,095.52 11,939.31
46,925.99 47,878.25
372.34 698.62
1,87,280.06 1,91,627.18
1,86,907.72 1,90,928.56
1,86,907.72 1,90,928.56
1,87,280.06 1,91,627.18

The Company recognises revenue from sale of goods at the paint in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goeds. The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due

within 0 to 90 days from delivery.

* 5ale of services was in the nature of job works executed.

** Sale of scrap and other is in the nature of segregated scrap, ash and residue sales.

20. Other income

Interest on fixed deposits
Interest on receivables and others
Interest on Income Tax
Liability towards custom/stamp duty written back
Interest on balances of related parties (Refer to Note 31)
Miscellanecus income
Management Support Services
Sundry balance write Back (net)
Forward premium on realised and unrealised commodity contracts
Unrealised gain on commodity future contracts (net)
Exchange fluctuation [net)

Total

21. Cost of material consumed
The details of cost of material consumed is as follows:

Raw materials:

Opening stock

Add: Purchases during the period
Less: Closing stock

Total

22. Purchase of Stock in Trade

Purchase of traded goods

23, Change in inventory of work in progress and finished goods

Opening stock:
Finished goods

Less: Closing stock:
Finished goods

Total

For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1.75 4.07
6.80 5.02
- 19.98
10.54 28.43
606.84 362.70

0.96 -

68.50 -
- 4.00

54.74

8.64 48.14
153.09 469.86
511.86 942.20

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

11,822.30 9,932.48
1,66,528.55 1,65,019.15
{8,373.51) {11,822.30)
1,69,978.34 1,63,129.33

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4,864.54 11,910.35
4,864.54 11,910.35
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,367.67 5,714.72
1,025.04 1,367.67
342.63 4,347.05
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24, Employee benefits expense

Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,692.92 1,586.44
Contribution to pravident and other funds 35.14 35.88
Gratuity 12.72 10.54
Staff welfare expenses 164.12 161.61
1,904,80 1,794.47

Disclosure in compliance with Ind AS-19 on Employee Benefits has been given in Note 32

25, Finance cost

Interest on rupee term loans & others
- On borrowings and others*

- On Income Tax

- Interest on balances of related parties {(Refer to Note 31)

Other finance costs

* Including interest on Income tax of Rs 15.32 Lacs { March 31, 2023 : Nil}

26. Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets {Refer to note 3}
Amortization of intangible assets {Refer to note 4)

27. Other expenses

Power & fuel
Rent paid
Insurance charges
Rates and taxes

Repair and maintenance of:

- Plant and equipment
- Buildings

- Others

Printing and statlonery

Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment (net)
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion

Traveliing and conveyance expenses

Payment to statutory auditor (Refer details below)
Vehicle running and maintenance

Freight and cartage outward

Commission on currency and commodity derivatives
Forward premium on realised and unrezlised commodity

contracts

Lega! and professional expenses
Stores & spares consumed
Packing material consumed
Procurement commission

Bank charges

Sundry balance write Off {net)

Director sitting fees

Carporate Social Responsibility
Comimunication expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

Details of payment made to auditors is as follows:

As auditor:
- Statutory audit fee
- Tax audit fee

Total

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

730.08 514.33
15,32
137.35 36,43
13.54 11.75
896.29 562.51
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
784.18 760.73
0.24 0.24
784.42 760.97

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

4,204.41 4,028.70
188.79 144.72
53.54 42.86
41.53 22.88
310.79 588.59
24.65 125.04
12.28 39.64
7.18 9.86
0.62 248
0.47 1.35
64.77 81.47
4.95 4.95
6.18 6.20
814.67 1,130.27
44,24 67.45
- 11.56
46.13 35.47
308.60 332.62
93.85 106.43
1,153.90 1,044.25
12.52 2135

22,11 -
175 2.25
101.85 113.74
9.15 7.80
64.81 87.24
7,593.74 8,060.18

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

4.20 4.20
0.75 0.75
4.95 4.95
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28. Components of Other Comprehensive Income

The disaggregation of changes to OCl by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 2.58 (6.22)
Income tax effect {0.65) 1.55
1.93 (4.65)

29, Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit attributable to the equity holders 1,348.05 1,506.30
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS 8,29,72,975 8,28,72,975
Basic and diluted earnings per share (face value INR 10 per share)* 1.62 1.82

*There is no convertible share hence, diluted EPS is equal to basic EPS

Woeighted Average of Equity Shares

Opening Eq Shares .
Issued during the shares

No of shares
8,29,72,975

No of shares
8,29,72,975

8,29,72,975

8,29,72,975
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30. Commitment and Contingencies

A. Capital and Other Commitments

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for ) 5.25
B. Contingent liahbilities
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- Demand raised under section 69 C of Income Tax Act for A.Y. 2015-16, and the company has paid
Rs 67.50 Lakhs as 20% of the total demand under protest which is appearing under the head
"Balance with statutory/ government authorities” in "Other Current Assets" in Note 8 to the 337.30 337.30
Financial Statements.The Company is in appeal before CIT Appeals.
- Demand raised (including interest) under Sale Tax/ VAT subject to genuineness verification of
manual C form for A.Y. 15-16 and proceedings pending before The Assistant collector (Excise & - -
Taxation), Rewari, Haryana
- Demand raised {including interest) under Sale Tax/ VAT subject to genuineness verification of]
manual C form for AY. 16-17 and proceedings pending before The JT. Excise & Taxation - -
Commissioner (A}, Faridabad, Haryana { CST Rs. 32.41 Lakhs+ VAT Rs. 2.04 Lakhs)
- Demand raised (including interest) under Sale Tax/ VAT subject to genuineness verification of|
manual C form for AY. 17-18 and proceedings pending before The JT. Excise & Taxation - -
Commissioner (A), Faridabad, Haryana { CST Rs. 2.44 Lakhs + VAT Rs.1.67 Lakhs}
- Demands (including interest) raised on account of non payment / short payment of service tax 1.43 1.43
under reverse charge and proceedings pending before CESTAT, Haryana ) ’
OIO Order in Form GST DRC - 07 issued vide Ref No. ZD2410220032954 dated 04/10/2022. issue
regarding High utilization ITC 3B VS 2A diff for the period april 2019 to Mar 2020u/s 73 CGST ACT 161.91 68.35
and Rules 2017 Appeal filed to Appellate Authority Dy. commisioner Rajkot
Wrong availment of cenvat credit in TRANS-1 , Case proceeding reference INDT/SSCA/TC/2021- ) 6.25
22/DIV -REWARI /FBD.244 DATED 28/07/2021 )
-Company has received the demand for enhancement of land value from HSIDC. Company has filed 137.00 137.00
a writ petition before the Punjab and Haryana High court against the demand notice ) ’
-others 0.40 0.40
C. Guarantees (Amountin Rs. Lakhs)
Particular As at As at
s March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Bank guarantees issued by bank 87.68 60.00
Total 87.68 60.00
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31. Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS -24 'Related Party Disclosures' , names of the related parties, related party
relationship, transactions and outstanding balances where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place during
the period are:

Names of related parties and related party relationship
{a) Key management personnel and their relatives

Mr. Gauri Shankar Agarwala - Director {Resigned w.e.f. 27.09.2021)
vir. Mohan Agarwal - Managing Director
Mir. Eiji Wakai - Director
Mr. Satish Kaushik - Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Sonam Garg - Company Secretary [Resigned w.e.f 16-06-2024]
Mr. Peter Francis Amour - Director [Resigned w.e.f 28-09-21}]
Mr. Yuk Mui Theresa Chung - Alternate Director (Resigned w.e.f 29.09.2021)
Ms. Suman Bala - Director [Resigned w.e.f 21.09.2023]
Mr. Balvinder Kumar appointed w.e.f. 30.09.2021
Ms. Ridhima Bagla [w.ef 11-10-2023]

{b) Holding Company and Fellow Subsidiaries
(i) Holding Company:-
CMR Green Technologies Limited

{ii) Fellow Subsidiaries and Assosciates {Subsidiary of Holding Company}):-
CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited
CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited (v.e.f. 06.08.2020)
CMR Aluminium Private Limited
CMR Welfare foundation
CMR Eco Aluminium Pvt Ltd
Nikkei CMR Aluminum Private Limited
CMR Green LLC- {w.e.f. 02.08.2023)

{c) Joint Venture Partner
Nikkei MC Aluminium Company Limited

(d} Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel and their relatives
Sanjivani Metal Trading Pvt. Ltd
CMR-Chiho Recycling Techn. Private Limited
CMR Chiho Industries India Private Limited
CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited
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{ii) The following table provides the total value of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

{Amountin Rs, Lakhs)

Particulars

Holding

Fellow Subsidiar, 05, Jotnt venture partner,
enterprises under same contrel, other related
entitles

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year
ended March
31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Transactions during the year:

Sale of goods

CMR Green Technologles Limited

CMR - Toyatsu Aluminium Indla Private Limited
CMR-Chiho Industries india Pvt. Ltd.

CMR Aluminium (ndia Pvt ttd

Nikkel CMR Aluminium India Private limited
Nlkkei MC Aluminium Company Limited

40,937.16

45,727.98

1,139.07 5,550.83

8,488.31 2,569.36
198 -

15,049.76 18,283.03

Sale of store items

CMR Green Technologles Limited

CMR-Chiho Industries Indla Pvt. Ltd.

CMR ECO ALUMINIUM PRIVATE LTD

CMR Aluminlum India Pvt Ltd

CMR - Toyotsu Al India Private Limited

0.01 -

0.25

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment

CMR Green Technologies Umited

CMR Aluminium Indla Pvt Ltd

CMR-Chiho Industries Indla Pvt. Ltd.
CMR-Kataria Recycling Pvt. Ltd

CMR ECO ALUMINIUM PRIVATE LTD

CMR - Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited

48.49 -
0.46 5.08

Burchase of goods

CMR Green Technologles Umlted

CMR-Chiho Industries Indla Pvt. Ltd.
CMR-Chiho Recycling Technologles Pvt. Ltd.
CMR Aluminium tndla Pvt Ltd

Sanjivan! Metal Trading Pvt. Ltd

CMR-Kataria Recydling Pvt Ltd

CMR - Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited

£0,655.91

66,437.26

24,143.81 42,902.29

1,159.98 958.03
45,32
S34.76 1,858.07

Job Work Changes
CMR Aluminium India Pvt Ltd

1,886.46 39.62

Purchase of store items

CMR Green Technologles Limited

CMR-Chiho Industries India Pvt. Ltd.

CMR Aluminium India Pvt Ltd

Nikkel MC Aluminium Company Limited

CMR - Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited

0.94
4.62 164
0.34
7.0% 0.03

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
CMR Green Technologies Limited

CMR - Toyotsu Aluminlum India Private Limited
CMR Aluminium Indla Pvt Ltd

CMR-Chiho Industries Indla Pvt. Ltd.

EMR-Chiho Recycllng Technologies Put. Ltd,

21.86

Expense made by Gthers on behalf of Us

CMR Green Technologtes Pvt. Ltd

CMR Aluminium Indla Pvt Ltd

CMR - Tayotsu Aluminium India Private Limlted

308.94

110.18

154 -
0.04 18.22

Expense made by Us on behalf of others

CMR Green Technologies Limited

CMR - Tayotsu Aluminium India Private Limited
Sanlivani Metal Trading Pvt. Ltd

CMR Aluminium India Pvt Ltd

Nikkel MC Alyminium Company Limited
CMR-Chiho Industries India Pyt. Ltd.
CMR-Chiho Recycling Techn. Pvt. Ltd.

Q.07 -

122.57 3295

Interest paid

CMR Green Technalogles Limited

CMR Aluminlum Indla Pvt Ltd

CMR - Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Umited
| Sanjivani Metal Trading Pvi. Ltd

|Interest Recelved

CMR - Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Umited

CMR Green Technelogies Limlted
CMR Eco Aluminium Private limited
CMR Al India Pvt Ltd

169.05 12843

- 234.27
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{Amountin Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

Holding

Fellow Subsidiarles, jolnt venture partnez,
enterprises under same contecl, other related

entitles

Far the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year
ended March
31, 2023

Far the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Brocurement Commission
CMR Green Technologles Umited

1,153.90

1,044.25

MR Alumainium Private Umited

Commodity & Derlatives {Galn/{loss
CMR Green Technologtes Limited

815.86

1,036.08

Management Support Services
Nikkel CMR Aluminium Private Limited

68.50

Reduction in Guarantee
CMR Green Technologles Uimited

CSR
CMR Welfare Foundatlon

83.17

Remuneration pald
Sonam Garg

Sitting Fees
Balvinder Kumar

* Net of increase / (decrease} during the year

{iil} Balances as at the period end

{Amount In Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

Holding

Fellow Subsidiarles/ JoInt veature
partner/Controlling Entitles

Asat
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31,
2023

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

Trade payables

CMR Green Technologies Limited

{inclusive of procurement commission}
CMR-Chiho Industries India Pvt. Ltd.
CMR-Chiho Recyeling Techn, Pvt.Ltd.

CMR Aluminium Private Limited

Sanjlvani Metal Trading Pvt. Ltd

CMR - Toyotsu Aluminlum Indla Private Limited
CMR Eco Aluminfum Private limited

64948

168.39
3.35
550.61
4,607.94

16839
3.35
716.64
4,492.78

0.57

Advance to Suppliers
CMR Aluminium Private Limited

CMR-Katarla Recycling Pvt. Ltd
CMR Green Technologtes Limited

6,118.54

Payable to holding company an account of outstanding derivative
contracts
CMR Green Technologies Limited

81.65

Other Recoverable
CMR-Chiho Recycling Techn. Pvt.Ltd.
CMR Aluminjum Private Limited

Trade Recclvables

CMR - Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Umited
Nikkel MC Aluminium Company Limited

Nikkel CMR Aluminium

CMR Eco Aluminlum Private limited

548.20

2255
531

11512
1,837.38

Employee Related Uabilities
Sonam Garg.

0.49

Notes:-

{l) No amount has been written off or written back In the perlod in respect of debts due from/ to above related partles.

Terms and conditiens of transactions with related parties

Notes:

The sale and purchase from relsted partlas are made on terms equivalent to those that prevall in arm's length transaction. Qutstanding balances at the year end
are unsecured. Thera have been no guarantee provided or recelved for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2024, the
Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment in undertaken each financlal year through
examlning the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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32. Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plans - General Description
Provident Fund:

The Company makes contsibution towards provident fund/ pension fund. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes, to the defined contribution scheme.

) For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employers contribution to Provident fund
{including Employee's Pension Scheme 1995)* 33.10 34.01
Total 33.10 34.01

* Net off benefit of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs Nil lakhs) received under Pradhan Mantri Rojgar Prosthan Yojna.

Defined Benefit Plans - General Description

Gratuity:
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to

specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a
benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months. The same is payable on
termination of service or retirement or death, whichever is earlier.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the
projected unit cradit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures
each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount
rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market ylelds on Government bonds as at the
date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses {net of tax) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCl).

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the
balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

particulars March 31, 2024 vtarch 31, 2023
Gratulty Gratuity
{Unfunded) {Unfunded)

Change in benefit obligation
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 59.28 43.18
Acquisition adjustment - .
Current service cost 8.36 7.4%
Add: Past service cost - -
Add: Interest cost 4.36 3.13
Add: Actuarial {(gain} / loss (2.58) 6.22
Less: Benefits paid {2.58) {0.64)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 66.85 59.24
Liability/ (Asset) racognized in the financial statements 66.89 59.2¢
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 8.36 7.41
Interest cost on benefit obligation 4.36 3.13

Amount recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss 12.72 10.54




Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Actuaria! changes arising from changes in demographic
assumptions i )
Actuarial changes arising from changes In financial
assumptions 0.94 {0.76)
Experlence adjustments (3.52) 6.97
Amount of loss recognised in Other Comprehensive

8 P (2.58) 6.22

Income

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate (%) 7.23 7.36
Expected rate of return on Plan assets (%) -
Future salary Increases (%) 5.50 5.50
Retirement Age (Years) 60 60
Withdrawal rate
Up to 30 years 3% 3%
From 31 to 44 years 2% 2%
Above 44 years 1% 1%
Mortality table 100% of IALM {2012-14)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Gratuity Plan

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary
Discount rate 0.5% increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% Dacrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (3.61} 3.85 4.00 (3.68)
Gratuity Plan

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase
Discount rate 0.5% increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (3.30) 3.63 3.68 (3.37)

The sensitivity analyses above has been determined based on the method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of

reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of
increase of pensions in payments, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on

retirement.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Miarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. Rs.
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 10.10 10.82
Between 1 and 2 years 2.76 0.90
Between 2 and 3 years 0.7 0.90
Between 3 and 4 years 0.6 2.46
Between 4 and 5 years 0.97 0.83
Between S and b years 0.92 0.81
Beyond 6 years 50.16 42.55
Total expected payments 66.84 59,28

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 19.60 years
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33. Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the company’s financial instruments, other
than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values.

Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assets
A. Amortised Cost:
Security deposits 69.22 62.33 69.22 62.33
Non current fixed deposits 91.24 83.30 91.24 83.30
Total 160.45 145.63 160.45 145.63
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities 81.66 96.11 81.66 96.11
81.66 96.11 81.66 96.11
A. Amortised Cost:
Borrowings 0.00 (0.00) 0.00 {0.00)
0.00 (0.00) 0.00 {0.00)

The management assessed that trade receivables, capital creditors, trade payables and other financial assets and liabilities
(except derivatives and liabilities) approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values :-

Derivative financial instruments -

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is determined using the foreign exchange spot and forward rates at the
balance sheet date.

The derivatives are entered into with the banks / counterparties with investment grade credit ratings.

Borrowings:-
The fair values of the Company’s interest bearing borrowings are determined by using discounted cash flow {DCF) method
using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period.

Investments, loan to employees, security deposits and Interest accrued on fixed deposits:~
The fair value of investment in other equity instruments, loan to employees, security deposit and interest accrued on fixed
deposits approximates the carrying value and hence, the valuation technique and inputs have not been given.
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35. Financial risk management abjectives and policles

The Company’s ptincipa! financial liabilities comprises of trade payables, derivative liabillty, financial guarantee, security deposits recelved, capital creditors and employee related
payables. The main purpose of these financial llabllities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support Its operations. The Company’s principal financial
assets Include trade and other recelvables, and cash and cash equivalent that derive directly from its eperations, The Company also enters into derlvative transactions.

The Company s exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senlor management oversees the management of these risks. The Cc ¥'s senlor gement is
responstble to ensure that Company’s financial risk activitles which are governed by appropriate policles and procedures and that financlal risks are Identifled, measured and managed In
accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activitles for risk management purposes are carrled out by spedialist teams that have the appropriate sklils,
experience and supervision. It is the Company’s pollcy that no trading In derlvatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken, The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policles for
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk Is the risk that the fatr value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market price. Market cisk comprise of interest rate risk, currency
risk, credit risk and commodity risk.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rata risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market interest rates. There in no impact on Company’s
profit before tax due floating rate borrowings, as no farelgn currency borrowing exists at the balance sheet date.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments =+

The Company has not disclosed interest rate risks on any fixed rate financial liabilitles at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date
would nelther affect profit or loss nor affect eguity.

{b) Forelgn currency risk

The Company is exposed to forefgn exchange risk arlsing from forelgn currency transactions primarily with respect to USD and CNY. Forelgn exchange risk arlses from future commercial
transactlons and recognlsed asset and llabHitles denominated in a currency that Is not the Company's functional currency. The Company imports raw materlals which exposes it to forelgn
currency rlsk. The Company holds derivative forelgn currency forward contracts to mitigate the risk of change in exchange rate on foreign currency exposure. The following tables
dermonstrate the sensitivity to a reasanably possible change In USD and CNY exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax Is due
to changes In the fair value of monatary assets and liabilities.

Below is the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk changes

Effect on profit before

Change in USD & CNY rate
tax
March 31,2024
ust +5% (9.32)
uso -5% 9.32
CNY +5% (0.51)
CNY -5% Q.51
March 21,2023
usp +5% 87.73
usp 5% (82.73)
CNY +5% {0.65}
cNY 5% 0.65

(c ) Commadity price risk

The operating activities of the Company require the ongolng purchase of aluminlum and scrap. The purchase price of the aluminlum scrap depends on the globa! metal market. However,
Company Is not expased to commodity price risk as any change in the price of commaodity is subsequently recovered by the Company from Its customers, thus safeguarding itself from
any fluctuation In the price of commodity.

{d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company Is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
cradit rigk s manitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit aver a certain amount.

(i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk Is ged as per the C y's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of @ customer is assessed
based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and Individual credit limits are defined In accordance with this assessment. Outstanding custamer receivables are regularly monitored.

An Impairment analysls is perfarmed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The calculation Is based on exchange losses historical data. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date Is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed below. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the
cancentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low on the basis of past default rates of its customers.

The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0- 180 days 13,633.47 9,298.69
Above 180 days 4.24 1194




{ii} Financtal instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. lnvestments of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limlts assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Birectors on an annual basls. The
timits are set to minimise tha concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential fallure te make payments.

The Company’s 1 P e to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet:
Asat
Particulars March 31,2024
|Interest accrued but not recelved 12,94
Non current fixed deposits 18.70
Security deposits {current & non current) 69.22
Loan to employees 14.39
Trade receivablas 13,637.7%

Liquldity risk

‘The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds doing a liquidity planning exerclse.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continulty of funding and flexibility through the use of shart term borrowing facllitles like bank overdraft, cash credlt facility
and buyers credit facllity. The Company’s treasury function reviews the liquidity pasition on an angoing basis. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing
Its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficlent varlety of sources of funding and surplus cash and cash equivatent on the basis of expected cash flow. The
table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financlat liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payment :

As at March 31, 2024
Particulars On demand Less than 12 months 1-5 years >5 years Total
Borrowlngs 3.07 3,202.30 - 3,205.37
Current maturities of long term borrowings {Refer
to note 13) : . - -
{Security deposit from customers/ others - 1.92 - 192
Lease liabilitles - - - -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.04 - 1.04
Employee related liabilities - 53.00 - $3.00
Payable for capital goods 94.63 B 94.63
Trade payables - 8,506.88 - 8,505.88
3.07 11,859.78 - 11,862.84
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars On demand Less than 12 months 3-5 years >5 years Total
Borrawlngs 0.15 958.56 - 959.11
Current maturltles of long term borrowlngs (Refer A R
to note 13) .
Security deposit from customers/ others 2.48 - 2.48
Lease liabllities - -
Interest accrued but not due on borrawings 1.04 . 1.04
Employee related liabilitles - 46.07 - 46.07
Payable for capital goods 18141 - 181.41
Trade pavables - 9,669.69 - 9,669.69
0.15 10,859.65 - 10,859.80

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged In simifar business activitles, or activitles In the same geographical region, or have economlc features that would
cause their ability to meet contractua! abligations to be simllarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the
s of the Cc
simitar business activitles. The Company has a strong customer base and derives Its revenues from many customers belonging to different industries and corresponding trade receivables

Company’s performance to development affecting a particular industry. The Company Is not exposed to excessive concentratlon since the

are from varied number of customers.

y are not d In
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34, Fair Value Hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest [evel input that is insignificant to the fair value measurements as a whole.

Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

teve! 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on fair value measurement is not based on observable
market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the company’s assets and liabilities.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets As at March 31, 2024

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices Significant Significant
Date of valuation Total in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
@ {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial assets
A, Amortised Cost:
Security deposit March 31, 2024 69.21 - 69.21 -
Non Current Fixed deposits March 31, 2024 91.24 - 91.24 -
Total 160.44 - 160.44 -
Financial liabilities
A. Amortised Cost:
Borrowings March 31, 2024 0.00 - 0.00 -
Total 0.00 - 0.00 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended March 31, 2024,

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets As at March 31, 2023

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices  Significant Significant
Date of valuation Total in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
. {Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3}

Financial assets
A. Amortised Cost:
Security deposit March 31, 2023 62.33 - 62.33 -
Non Current Fixed deposits March 31, 2023 83.30 - 83.30 -
Total 145.63 - 145.63 -
Financial liabilities
A. Amaortised Cost:

Borrowings March 31, 2023 {0.00) - (0.00) -
Total {0.00}) - (0.00} -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended March 31, 2023.
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36. Segment information

As per Ind AS 108 identification of segment is based on the manner in which the entity's Chief Operating decision makers' (CODM) review the business

components regularly to make decisions about allocating resources to segment and in assessing its performance.

The Chief Operating Decision maker reviews business performance at an overall Company level as one segment "Aluminium and zinc based alloys"

a) Summary of total revenue by Geographical area for the year ended March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Products and services

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Revenue from external customers

India 1,70,802.49 1,67,182.61
Qutside india 16,477.58 24,444.57
Total 1,87,280.06 1,91,627.18
b) Summary of non- current assets by geographical location Is as follows:

G Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Property plant and equipment
India 9,259.85 9,754.69
Qutside India
Intangible
India 0.63 0.87
Outside India
Capital Work-in-progress
India - 167.93
Qutside India
Other Non current financial assets
India 532.83 316.84
Qutside India
Total 9,793.31 10,240.33

¢) Revenue from major customer

Revenue from major customers with percentage of total Revenue are as below:-

C Narme of The Customer For the year ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
Revenue (Rs in lakhs) Revenue {in %) Revenue {Rs in lakhs)| Revenue (in %)
CMR Green Technologies Ltd 40,972.74 21.88% 45,727.98 23.86%
Suzuki Motors Gujarat Pvt Ltd 40,339,70 21.54% 39,777.18 20.76%
Ahresty India Pvt. Ltd, 28,194.46 15.05%. 19,863.30 10.37%!




CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

37. Capital Management

The Board's policy maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors manitor the return on capital employed as
well as the level of dividend to shareholders.

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital general reserves
attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the
shareholder's value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capitai structure, the Company may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and
cash equivalents.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Borrowings (Refer to note 13) 3,205.37 959.11
Current maturity of long term loans (Refer to note 15}

Trade payables {Refer to note 16 ) 8,506.88 9,589.06
Other financials liabilities (Refer to note 17 ) 232.25 327.11
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Refer to note 11 (i) ) (6.40) (122.80}
Net debt 11,938.10 10,752.48
Equity share capital 8,297.30 8,297.30
Other equity 19,750.85 18,400.88
Total Capital 28,048.15 26,698.17
Capital and net debt 39,986.25 37,450.65
Gearing ratio 29.86% 28.71%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year end March
31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

There are no indications of impairment of any individual cash generating assets or on cash generating units in the
opinion of the management and therefore no test of impairment is carried out.
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38(a). Details of dues to micre and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting
period

134.70

401.61

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appeinted day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

O
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38{b). Ratio Analysis and its elements:

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23 | % change
Current ratio |Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.52 2.57 -1.92%
Shareh ity -
Debt- Equity are. oIdeHs. Equity
i Total Debt Effective portion of 0.11 0.04| 218.12%
Ratio
cash flow hedge
Earnings for debt
Debt Service S?';;:eaf:get;xes + Debt service = Interest
. P Payments + Principal 2.38 3.92 -39.34%
Coverage ratio|Non-cash
) Repayments
operating
expenses
Net Profits aft Sh r
Rett.lrn on. et Profits after Avef'age areholder’s 0.05 0.06 15.17%
Equity ratio  |taxes Equity
| t
nventory . |Cost of goods sold |Average Inventory 15.20 12.26 23.98%
Turnover ratio
Trade
Receivable Net sales = Total |Av Trade
eceiva et sale ota erz.age r 16.29 14.45 12.73%
Turnover sales - sales return |Receivable
Ratio
Trade Payable |Net Purchases = Average Trade
Turnover Total Purchases - & 19.52 18.52 5.38%
. Payables
Ratio purchases return
Net Capital Working capital =
les = |
Turnover Net sales = Tota Current assets — 9.87 10.94 -9.82%
. sales - sales return e
Ratio Current liabilities
Ne'f Profit Net Profit Net sales = Total sales 0.01 0.01 -8.43%
ratio sales return
Capital Employed =
Returh on
i ible Net W +
Capital Farnmgs before |Tangible Ne orth- 0.09 0.09 6.19%
interest and taxes |Total Debt -Intanghile
Employed
assets
Return on Net Profit Investment N/A N/A N/A

Investment
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39. In light of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has spent/provision for Rs. 105.52 Lakhs on account of Corporate Social
Responsibility {CSR}.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Gross amount required to be spent 105.52 113.74
(b) Amount spent on:

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - 15.28
(i) On purpose other than (i) above - -
{iii} Unspent amount required to be deposited in separate a/c 105.52 58.46
(c) Detail of related party transactions out of (b) above: - -

- CMR Welfare Foundation 83.17 -

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) had amended Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 vide The Companies {Amendment) Act 2020, wherein
a proviso was added to Sub-Section (5) of Section 135 which states that any amount remaining unspent under sectiocn 135 (5), pursuant to any
ongoing project, fulfilling such conditions as may be prescribed, undertaken by a company in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy, shzall be transferred by the company within a period of thirty days from the end of the financial year to a special account to be opened
by the company in that behalf for that financial year in any scheduled bank to be called the Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account,
and such amount shall be spent by the company in pursuance of its obligation towards the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy within a
period of three financial years from the date of such transfer, failing which, the company shall transfer the same to a Fund specified in Schedule
VI, within a period of thirty days from the date of completion of the third financial year. Accordingly, the Company had made provision of
unspent amount of Rs 113.74 |acs during the previous year and Rs. 105.52 lacs during the current year.

The Company has during the current year transferred an amount of Rs. 105.47 lacs {o specified bank account.

Particulars In Separate CSR
Unspent A/c
Opening Balance 80.63
Amount transferred to separate CSR Unspent A/c 08.46
Amount spent during the period 80.63
Closing Balance 98.46
Details related to unspent obligations:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance in separate CSR unspent account 98.46 80.63
Unspent amount to be transferred to a specified fund account 105.52 -

203.98 80.63

40. In line with the applicable Accounting Standards, during the year, pre-operative expenses of Nil (March 31 2023: Nil) up to the date of
capitalization have been capitalised.

41, Previous year figures has been regrouped/rearranged wherever is required.

42.The Company's operations and revenue were impacted on account of disruption in economic activity due to Covid - 19. The management
believes that the overall impact of the pandemic is short term and temporary in nature and is not likely to have any significant impact on the
recoverability of the carrying value of its assets and the future operations. The management is closely monitoring the developments and
possible effects that may result from the pandemic on its financial condition, liquidity and operations and is actively working to minimize the
impact of this unprecedented situation.

43.The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security 2020 which will impact the contributions / provision by the Company
towards Provident Fund and gratuity. The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules for qualifying
the financials impact are yet to be framed. Based on the initial assessment by the Company, the additional impact on Provident Fund
contributions by the Company is not expected to be material, whereas the likely additional impact on gratuity liability by the Company could be
material. The Company will complete their evaluation and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the
code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.




44,0ther Statutory Information

{i} The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.

{ii} The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

{iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

{iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v} The Company have not made any loans or advanced in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties
(as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

a) repayable on demand or

b} without specifying any terms or period of repayment

{(vi) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(vii} The Company have not received any fund from any person(s} or entity(ies), inciuding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(viii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1951 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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